
 
Board of Commissioners 
606 5th Ave. SW, Room #131 

Roseau, MN 56751 
Phone:  218-463-4248 

Fax:  218-463-3252 

 
June 24, 2014 

 
REGULAR COUNTY BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

 
Notice is hereby given that the Board of Commissioners of Roseau County will meet in session on June 24, 2014 at 9:00 a.m. in the 
Roseau County Courthouse, Room 110, Roseau, MN, at which time the following matters will come before the Board: 
 
9:00 Call to Order  

1. Presentation of Colors 
2. Approve Agenda 
3. Comments and Announcements 
4. Approve Bills 

 
9:10 Delegations/Board Appointments/Public Comments* 
 
9:15 Public Hearing - SSTS Ordinance 
 
9:45 Continuation of the June 17, 2014 Board of Appeal and Equalization 
 
10:00 BREAK 
 
10:15 Consent Agenda 

1. June 10, 2014 Board Proceedings 
2. April 22, 2014 Board Proceedings 
3. AMC Broadband Subcommittee  
4. Northstar ATV Club GIA Reimbursement 
5. Advertisement for Hire - Civil Process Supervisor/Office Manager  
6. Appraiser Trainee Hire 
7. Temporary Liquor License Application - Badger Jaycee’s 

 
10:20 Committee Reports 

1. Building Committee 
a. Computer Room Humidifier/Dehumidifier  

 
10:30 County Board Items 

1. Commissioner Committee Reports 
 

11:30 Unfinished Business 
 

11:30 Adjourn  
 
 
 
   *Limited to five minutes 

County Coordinator’s Office e-mail address: annmarie.miller@co.roseau.mn.us, Roseau County Home Page Address:  http://www.co.roseau.mn.us/ 
 

District 1, Glenda Phillipe, Chair ** District 2, Jack Swanson, Vice-Chair ** District 3, Roger Falk 
District 4, Todd Miller ** District 5, Mark Foldesi 

An Equal Opportunity Employer 
 

mailto:annmarie.miller@co.roseau.mn.us
http://co.roseau.mn.us/


Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

 
 

Agenda Item #:   Public Hearing 
(for office use only) 
Requested Board Date: 6/24/14 Originating Department:  Environmental Office 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
Public Hearing – SSTS Ordinance 

Presenter:  Jeff Pelowski 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 

☐< 5 minutes ☐ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes 

☒ 15 minutes ☐ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 

Board Action Requested: 
A Public Hearing has been scheduled in order for the Board to hear Public Comment on revisions to 
County Ordinance No. 24 entitled “Sewage and Wastewater Treatment Ordinance.” 

Background: 
The Public Hearing Notice and draft Ordinance are attached, (the MPCA proposed changes, following 6/17/14 
MPCA conference call, are in “red”). 
 

Supporting Documentation: ☒ Attached ☐ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 

☐ Delegations  ☐ Consent Agenda 

☐ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 

☐ County Board Items ☒ Other 
 

 
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 

 

Board Action: 
 Approved as Requested:    
 Denied:    
 Tabled:    
 Other:    

Distribution/Filing Instructions:   

 





 

 
 
 
 
 
 

SUBSURFACE SEWAGE TREATMENT 
SYSTEM ORDINANCE 

 
Roseau County 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

June 2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

ROSEAU COUNTY SSTS ORDINANCE 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

SECTION 1  PURPOSE, INTENT AND SCOPE ................................................................................... 1 

 1.1 Purpose .................................................................................................................................. 1 

 1.2 Intent ..................................................................................................................................... 1 

 1.3 Scope ..................................................................................................................................... 2 

 

SECTION 2 GENERAL PROVISIONS ................................................................................................. 2 

 2.1 Authority ............................................................................................................................... 2 

 2.2 Jurisdiction ............................................................................................................................ 2 

 2.3 Interpretation ......................................................................................................................... 2 

 2.4 Severability ........................................................................................................................... 2 

 2.5 Liability ................................................................................................................................. 3 

 2.6 Abrogation and Greater Restrictions ..................................................................................... 3 

 

SECTION 3 ADMINISTRATION .......................................................................................................... 3 

 3.1 County Administration .......................................................................................................... 3 

 3.2 State Administration ............................................................................................................. 3 

 3.3 Cities and Townships ......................................................................................................... 3 

 3.4 Board of Adjustment ............................................................................................................. 3 

  3.41 Rules ..................................................................................................................................... 3 

  3.42 Appeals.................................................................................................................................. 4

  3.43 Administrative Review ......................................................................................................... 4 

 

SECTION 4 DEFINITIONS .................................................................................................................... 4 

 

SECTION 5 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS ......................................................................................... 7 

 5.1 Existing SSTS and Permits ................................................................................................... 7 

 5.11 Existing Permits .................................................................................................................... 7 

 5.12 Existing SSTS ....................................................................................................................... 7 

 5.2 Upgrade, Repair, Replacement and Abandonment ............................................................... 7 

  5.21 SSTS Capacity Expansions ................................................................................................... 7 

  5.22 Bedroom Additions ............................................................................................................... 7 

 



 

  5.23 Failure to Protect Groundwater ............................................................................................. 8 

  5.24 Imminent Threat to Public Health or Safety ......................................................................... 8 

  5.25 Abandonment of SSTS .......................................................................................................... 8 

 5.3 SSTS Located in Floodplains ................................................................................................ 8 

 5.4 Class V Injection Wells ......................................................................................................... 8 

 5.5 SSTS Licensing Requirements .............................................................................................. 8 

  5.51 License Required ................................................................................................................... 8 

  5.52 License Exemption ................................................................................................................ 9 

 5.6 Prohibitions ........................................................................................................................... 9 

  5.61 Sewage Discharge to Ground Surface or Surface Water ...................................................... 9 

  5.62 Sewage Discharge to a Well or Boring ................................................................................. 9 

  5.63 Discharge of Hazardous or Deleterious Materials ................................................................ 9 

 

SECTION 6 SSTS STANDARDS ............................................................................................................ 10

 6.1 Standards Adopted by Reference .......................................................................................... 10 

          6.11 MN Rules Chapter 7080-7081 .............................................................................................. 10 

          6.12 MN Rules, Chapters 4715 and 4725 SSTS Setbacks ............................................................ 10 

          6.13 Federal Regulations Code 40, Part 503 Septage Disposal .................................................... 11 

      6.2 Alternative Local Standards (ALS) ....................................................................................... 11 

          6.21 Compliance Criteria: Existing SSTS with ALS Vertical Separation .................................... 11 

         6.22 ALS Vertical Separation for New and Replacement SSTS .................................................. 12 

          6.23 Locations Where Alternative Local Standards Do Not Apply .............................................. 13 

          6.24 Soil Dispute Resolution ........................................................................................................ 13 

          6.25 Holding Tanks ....................................................................................................................... 13 

          6.26 Privies ................................................................................................................................... 14 

          6.27 Lot Size for Treatment Area ................................................................................................. 14 

         6.28 Standards Must Comply with other Laws and Rules ............................................................ 14 

      6.3 2011 MN Rule Elements Included in this Ordinance ........................................................... 14 

          6.31 Sewage Tanks ....................................................................................................................... 14 

          6.32 Registered Products ............................................................................................................... 15 

          6.33 Vertical Separation Flexibility .............................................................................................. 15 

          6.34 Trench and Seepage Bed Design........................................................................................... 16 

      6.4 List of Technical Differences ................................................................................................ 16 

 

 



 

SECTION 7 VARIANCES ....................................................................................................................... 16 

      7.1 Variance Requests ................................................................................................................. 16 

      7.2 MPCA – State Notification ................................................................................................... 16 

 7.3 Board of Adjustment ............................................................................................................. 16 

SECTION 8 SSTS PERMITS AND PLANS .......................................................................................... 17 

 8.1 SSTS Permits Required ......................................................................................................... 17 

 8.2 Activities Requiring a SSTS Permit ...................................................................................... 17 

 8.3 Activities Not Requiring a SSTS Permit ............................................................................... 17 

 8.4 SSTS Permit Requirements in Floodplain and Shoreland .................................................... 17 

 8.5 SSTS Permit Applications .................................................................................................... 17 

 8.6 Permit Application Review and Response ............................................................................ 18 

 8.7 Appeal ................................................................................................................................... 18 

 8.8 SSTS Permit Expiration ........................................................................................................ 18 

 8.9 Transferability ....................................................................................................................... 18 

      8.10 Operating Permits ................................................................................................................. 18 

 8.11 Suspension or Revocation ..................................................................................................... 18 

 

SECTION 9 MANAGEMENT PLANS .................................................................................................. 18 

 9.1 Purpose .................................................................................................................................. 18 

 9.2 Management Plan Requirements .......................................................................................... 19 

 9.3 Management Plan Contents................................................................................................... 19 

 

SECTION 10 SSTS INSPECTION REQUIREMENTS .......................................................................... 19 

 10.1 Compliance Inspection Program  .......................................................................................... 19 

 10.2 New Construction or Replacement ....................................................................................... 20 

 10.3 Existing Systems ................................................................................................................... 20 

 10.4 Disclaimer ............................................................................................................................. 21 

 

SECTION 11 ENFORCEMENT ............................................................................................................... 21 

 11.1 Violations .............................................................................................................................. 21 

  11.11 Cause to Issue a Notice of Violation ..................................................................................... 21 

  11.12 Notice of Violation ................................................................................................................ 21 

  11.13 Cease and Desist Orders ....................................................................................................... 22 

  11.14 Administrative Fees .............................................................................................................. 22 

 



 

  11.15 Reimbursements for Restoration ........................................................................................... 22 

 11.2 Prosecution ............................................................................................................................ 22 

 

SECTION 12 FEES ..................................................................................................................................... 22 

 

SECTION 13  ADOPTION .......................................................................................................................... 23 

 



 

ROSEAU COUNTY 

SUBSURFACE SEWAGE TREATMENT SYSTEM ORDINANCE 

 
An Ordinance authorizing and providing for sewage treatment and soil dispersal in unsewered 
areas of Roseau County; establishing: 
 

1) Minimum standards for, and regulation of, Individual Sewage Treatment Systems 
(ISTS) and mid-sized Subsurface Sewage Treatment Systems (MSTS), (collectively 
referred to as SSTS), in unsewered incorporated and unincorporated areas of Roseau 
County, and incorporating by reference minimum standards established by Minnesota 
Statutes and Minnesota Pollution Control Agency Rules; 

2) Requirements for issuing Permits for construction of SSTS; 
3) Providing for Alternative Local Standards (ALS); 
4) Requirements for all SSTS permitted under the revised Minnesota Rules, Chapter 

7080 and 7081, to be operated under an approved Management Plan; 
5) Standards for upgrade, repair, replacement and abandonment of SSTS; 
6) Provisions for the enforcement of these requirements; and 
7) Standards which promote the health, safety and welfare of the public as reflected in 

Minnesota Statutes, Sections 115.55, 145A.05, 375.51, 394.21-394.37, 471.82, and in 
conjunction with the Roseau County Floodplain and Shoreland Ordinances. 

 
 
SECTION 1: PURPOSE, INTENT AND SCOPE 
 
1.1 Purpose 

 
The purpose of this Ordinance is to establish minimum standards for regulation of SSTS 
for the treatment and dispersal of sewage within the applicable jurisdiction of the County, 
to protect public health and safety, surface water and groundwater quality, and to prevent 
or eliminate the development of public nuisances. It is intended to serve the best interests 
of the County’s citizens by protecting its health, safety, general welfare, and natural 
resources.  

1.2 Intent 
It is intended by the County that this Ordinance will promote the following: 

A. The protection of lakes, rivers and streams, wetlands, and groundwater in the County 
essential to the promotion of public health, safety, welfare, socioeconomic growth 
and development of the County . 

B. The regulation of proper SSTS construction, reconstruction, repair, maintenance, and 
location of SSTS to prevent the entry and migration of contaminants, thereby 
preventing the degradation of surface water and groundwater quality. 

C. The establishment of minimum and alternative local standards for SSTS placement, 
design, construction, reconstruction, repair, maintenance and proper septage disposal 

1 
 



 

to prevent contamination and, if contamination is discovered, the identification and 
control of its consequences and the abatement of its source and migration. 

D. The appropriate utilization of privy vaults and other non-water carried sewage 
collection and storage facilities. 

E. The provision of technical assistance and education, SSTS permitting, inspections, 
and enforcement to prevent and control water-borne diseases, lake and stream 
degradation, groundwater-related hazards, and public nuisance conditions. 

1.3 Scope 
This Ordinance regulates the siting, design, installation, alteration, maintenance, 
monitoring, and management of all SSTS within the County’s applicable jurisdiction; 
including, but not necessarily limited to, individual SSTS, cluster or community SSTS, 
privy vaults, and other non-water carried SSTS. All sewage generated in unsewered areas 
of the County shall be treated and dispersed by an approved SSTS that is sited, designed, 
installed, operated, and maintained in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance or 
by a sewage treatment system that has been permitted by the MPCA. 

 
 
SECTION 2: GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
2.1 Authority 

This Ordinance is adopted pursuant to MN Statutes, Section 115.55; MN Statutes, 
Sections 145A.01 through 145A.08; MN Statutes, Section 375.51, or successor statutes; 
MN Rules 2006, Chapter 7080; and, elements of MN Rules 2011, Chapters 7080, 7081, 
7082 and 7083, or successor rules. 

2.2 Jurisdiction 
The jurisdiction of this Ordinance shall include all lands of the County except for 
incorporated areas that administer a SSTS program by Ordinance within their incorporated 
jurisdiction, which is at least as strict as this Ordinance.  The Department shall keep a 
current list of local jurisdictions within the County administering a SSTS program. 

2.3 Interpretation 
In their interpretation and application, the provisions of this Ordinance shall be held to be 
minimum requirements and shall be liberally construed in favor of the County and shall 
not be deemed a limitation or repeal of any other powers granted by MN Statutes. 

2.4 Severability 
If any section, clause, provision, or portion of this ordinance is adjudged unconstitutional 
or invalid by a court of law, the remainder of this Ordinance shall not be affected and shall 
remain in full force. 

 
 

2 
 



 

2.5 Liability 
Any liability or responsibility shall not be imposed upon the Department or agency or any 
of its officials, employees, or other contract agent, its employees, agents or servants 
thereof for damage resulting from the defective construction, operation, or abandonment 
of any onsite or cluster treatment system regulated under this Ordinance by reason of 
standards, requirements, or inspections authorized hereunder. 

2.6  Abrogation and Greater Restrictions 
It is not intended by this Ordinance to repeal, abrogate, or impair any other existing 
County Ordinance, easements, covenants, or deed restrictions.  However, where this 
Ordinance imposes greater restrictions, the provisions of this Ordinance shall prevail. All 
other Ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of the 
inconsistency only. 

 
 

SECTION 3: ADMINISTRATION 
 
3.1 County Administration 

The Roseau County Environmental Office (Department) shall administer the SSTS 
program and all provisions of this Ordinance.  The County shall review, revise, and 
update this Ordinance as necessary, and shall employ, or retain under contract, qualified 
and appropriately licensed professionals to administer the SSTS program.  

3.2 State Administration  
Where a single SSTS, or group of SSTS under single ownership within one-half mile of 
each other, have a design flow greater than 10,000 gallons per day, the owner or owners 
shall make application for and obtain a State Disposal System permit from the MPCA.  
For any SSTS that has a measured daily flow for a consecutive seven (7) day period 
which equals or exceeds 10,000 gallons per day, a State Disposal System permit is 
required.  

SSTS serving establishments or facilities licensed or otherwise regulated by the State 
shall conform to the requirements of this Ordinance. 

3.3 Cities and Township 
Any jurisdiction within the County that regulates SSTS must comply with the standards 
and requirements of this Ordinance.  The standards and ordinance of the jurisdiction may 
be administratively and technically more restrictive than this Ordinance. 

3.4 Board of Adjustment 
3.41 Rules. The Board of Adjustment shall adopt rules for the conduct of business and 

may exercise all of the powers conferred on such Board by MN Statutes, Chapter 
394, and the procedures contained in the Roseau County Floodplain / Shoreland 
Ordinance(s). 

 

3 
 



 

3.42 Appeals.  An appeal of any administrative decision made in the enforcement of 
this Ordinance shall be made by filling out and submitting to the Department an 
Application for Appeal. Such an appeal shall be filed within thirty (30) calendar 
days after the date of the Department’s decision and specify the grounds thereof. 
Such appeal shall be heard by the Board of Adjustment pursuant to MN Statute 
394.27, Subd 6. 

 
3.43 Administrative Review.  The Board of Adjustment shall hear and decide appeals 

where it is alleged there is error in any order, requirement, decision or 
determination made by an administrative official in the enforcement or 
administration of this Ordinance. 

 
 
SECTION 4: DEFINITIONS 
 

The following words and phrases shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this Article.  If not 
specifically defined in this Article, terms used in this Ordinance shall have the same meaning as 
provided in the standards adopted by reference.  For purposes of this Ordinance, the words 
“must” and “shall” are mandatory and the words “may” and “should” are permissive. 

Alternative Local Standards (ALS):  ALS are individual sewage treatment system standards 
that are less restrictive than the State’s technical standards and criteria.  ALS contains the 
adopted standards from the 2006 MN Rules for systems using less than 2,500 gallons of water 
per day.  In addition, the “local standards” vertical separation provisions adopted by the County 
in 1998, are also included in the ALS. 

Alternative Local Standards Vertical Separation:  Standards that allow less than three (3) feet 
vertical separation, but not less than two (2) feet, in appropriate locations of the County.   

As-Built: Drawings and documentation specifying the final in-place location, elevation, size, and 
type of all system components.  These records identify the results of materials testing and 
describe conditions during construction.   

Authorized Representative: An employee or agent of the Roseau County Environmental 
Office. 

Bedroom:  Any room or unfinished area within a dwelling that might reasonably be used as a 
sleeping room. 

Board of Adjustment:  A Board established by the County Floodplain / Shoreland Ordinance(s) 
with the authority to order the issuance of variances, hear and decide appeals from a member of 
the affected public and review any order, requirement, decision, or determination made by any 
administrative official charged with enforcing any Ordinance adopted pursuant to the provision 
of MN Statutes, Sections 394.21 to 394.37. 
 
Class V Injection Well:  A shallow well used to place a variety of fluids directly below the land 
surface including domestic SSTS serving more than twenty (20) people. The US Environmental 
Protection Agency and delegated State groundwater programs permit these wells to inject wastes 
below the ground surface provided they meet certain requirements and do not endanger 

4 
 



 

underground sources of drinking water.  Class V motor vehicle waste disposal wells and large-
capacity cesspools are specifically prohibited, (see 40 CFR Parts 144 & 146). 

Cluster System:  An SSTS under common ownership that collects wastewater from three (3) or 
more dwellings or buildings and conveys it to a treatment and dispersal system located on an 
acceptable site near the dwellings or buildings. 

County:  Roseau County, Minnesota. 

County Board:  The Roseau County Board of Commissioners. 

Department:  The Roseau County Environmental Office. 

Design: The site evaluation, all system components, and record drawings. 

Design Flow:  The daily volume of wastewater for which an SSTS is designed to treat and 
discharge. 

Failing System: At a minimum, an SSTS that fails to protect groundwater is one that discharges 
sewage to a seepage pit, cesspool, drywell, leaching pit, or other pit; an SSTS with less than the 
required vertical separation distance as described in Chapter 7080.0060 Subp 3; less than three 
(3) feet vertical separation in systems located in floodplain and/or SWF; and, a system not 
abandoned in accordance with part 7080.0176. The determination of the threat to groundwater 
for other conditions shall be made by a Qualified Employee or MPCA-licensed professional. 

Grey Water: Sewage that does not contain toilet wastes. 

Imminent Threat to Public Health or Safety (IPHT): At a minimum, a SSTS with a discharge 
of sewage or sewage effluent to the ground surface, drainage systems, ditches, or storm water 
drains or directly to surface water; SSTS that cause a reoccurring sewage backup into a dwelling 
or other establishment; SSTS with electrical hazards; or sewage tanks with unsecured, damaged, 
or weak maintenance access covers.  The determination of protectiveness for other conditions 
must be made by a Qualified Employee MPCA-licensed professional.   

ISTS:  An individual sewage treatment system having a design flow of no more than 5,000 
gallons per day.  ISTS includes holding tanks and privies. 

Lot: “Lot” means a parcel of land in a plat recorded in the office of the County Recorder or 
Registrar of Titles or a parcel of land created and conveyed, using a specific legal description. 

Management Plan:  A Plan that describes necessary and recommended routine operational and 
maintenance requirements, periodic examination, adjustment and testing; and the frequency of 
each to ensure system performance meets the treatment expectations, including a planned course 
of action to prevent an illegal discharge. 

Minor Repair: The repair or replacement of an existing damaged or faulty component/part of an 
SSTS that will return the SSTS to its operable condition. A minor repair shall not alter the 
original area, dimensions, design, specifications or concept of the SSTS. 

Mottling: As applied to soils, means a zone of chemical and reduction activity, appearing as 
splotchy patches of red, brown or grey in the soil.  In sub soils with a color value of four or more, 
the term mottling also includes soil having matrix colors with a chroma of two or less as 
described in “Keys to Soil Taxonomy”: 11th Edition, 2010, (ie. Munsell Chart/Descriptions). 

MPCA:  Minnesota Pollution Control Agency. 

5 
 



 

MSTS:  A mid-sized subsurface sewage treatment system under single ownership that receives 
sewage from dwellings or other establishments having a design flow of more than 5,000 gallons 
per day to a maximum of 10,000 gallons per day. 

Notice of Noncompliance:  A written document issued by the Department notifying a system 
owner that the owner’s onsite or cluster treatment system has been observed to be noncompliant 
with the requirements of this Ordinance. 

Qualified Employee:  An employee of the State or a local unit of government, who performs 
design review, soil verification, and/or inspects SSTS as part of the individual’s employment 
duties, and is certified on the SSTS professional register verifying specialty area endorsements 
applicable to the work being conducted. 

Record Drawings: A set of drawings which to the fullest extent possible document the final in-
place location, size, and type of all SSTS components including the results of any materials 
testing performed and a description of conditions during construction of the system, (ie. as-built). 

Septage: Solids and liquids removed during periodic maintenance of an SSTS or solids and 
liquids which are removed from toilet waste treatment devices, holding tanks or privies. 
Sewage:  Waste from toilets, bathing, laundry, or culinary activities or operations or floor drains 
associated with these sources, including household cleaners and other constituents in amounts 
normally used for domestic purposes. 

SSTS:  Subsurface sewage treatment system including an ISTS or MSTS. 

Soil Dispersal System:  A system where sewage effluent is dispersed into the soil for treatment 
by absorption and filtration and includes, but is not limited to, trenches, seepage beds, at-grade 
systems, mound systems and drip dispersal systems. 

State:  The State of Minnesota. 

SWF:  Shoreland; wellhead protection areas; and, food, beverage, lodging establishments. 
Type I System:  A “standard” SSTS that follows a standard trench, bed, at-grade, mound, or 
gray water system design in accordance with MN Rules, Chapter 7080.0170 Subp 2, 3, 5, 6 and 
7. 

Type II System:  An “alternate” SSTS with acceptable modifications or sewage containment 
system that may be permitted for use on a site not meeting the conditions acceptable for a 
standard Type I system.  This type includes systems on lots with rapidly permeable soils per MN 
Rules Chapter 7080.0170, Subp 4; lots located in floodplains; and, privies or holding tanks per 
MN Rules, Chapter 7080.0172.  

Type III System: An” other” SSTS that uses soil to treat sewage but does not meet the tank, size 
or distribution requirements for a Type I system, per MN Rules Chapter 7080.0178.  Type III 
systems are designed for use on lots that cannot accommodate a standard Type I soil treatment 
and dispersal system.  

Type IV System:  An SSTS having an approved pretreatment device and incorporating pressure 
distribution and dosing.  It is sometimes referred to as “registered” system. 

6 
 



 

Type V System:  A “performance” SSTS, designed by a professional engineer that does not 
meet the prescriptive designs for Types I-IV.  Type V systems must meet the public health and 
safety standards of MN Rules, Chapter 7080.0179. 

Type ALS System:  An SSTS designed utilizing alternative local standards, (per definition).  

 
 
SECTION 5: GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
5.1 Existing Permits and SSTS 

5.11 Existing Permits 
Unexpired Permits which were issued prior to the effective date of this Ordinance 
shall remain valid under the terms and conditions of the original Permit until the 
original expiration date or until a change in system ownership, whichever is 
earlier. 

5.12 Existing SSTS 
A SSTS installed prior to the effective date of this Ordinance Revision and 
meeting the minimum requirements at the time it was installed, shall be allowed 
to continue in use except if it is determined as a failure to protect ground water or 
an imminent threat to public health or safety.   

 
5.2  SSTS Upgrade, Repair, Replacement, and Abandonment 
 

5.21  SSTS Capacity Expansions 
Expansion of an existing SSTS must include any system upgrades that are 
necessary to bring the entire system into compliance with MN Rules, Chapter 
7080.0060 at the time of the expansion. Expansions may include addition of 
bedrooms, water using appliances and mobile home replacement with larger 
home. 

5.22 Bedroom Additions 

When a bedroom addition is planned for construction, a SSTS compliance 
inspection is required of the existing SSTS. If SSTS does not comply with Section 
6.21 of this Ordinance, a Permit shall be issued to upgrade, repair, replace or 
abandon the existing septic system.  The owner is allowed five (5) years from the 
date of issuance of a Notice of Noncompliance to replace a failing system and 
sixty (60) days for systems that are deemed an imminent public health threat.   

 

 

7 
 



 

5.23 Failure to Protect Groundwater 

A SSTS that is determined not to be protective of groundwater shall be upgraded, 
repaired, replaced or abandoned by the owner in accordance with the provisions 
of this Ordinance within five (5) years of receipt of a Notice of Noncompliance. 
 

5.24 Imminent Threat to Public Health or Safety 

A SSTS that is determined to be an imminent threat to public health or safety in 
accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance, shall be upgraded, repaired, 
replaced or abandoned by the owner within sixty (60) days of receipt of a Notice 
of Noncompliance. 

5.25 Abandonment of SSTS 
A. All systems with no future intent for use must be abandoned in accordance 

with MN Rules, Chapter 7080.0176. 

B.  The continued use of a treatment tank where the tank is to become an integral 
part of a replacement system requires the prior written approval of the 
Department. 

 
5.3 SSTS Located in Floodplain 

 

SSTS shall not be located in a designated floodway district and placement within the 
flood fringe district should be avoided.  If no option exists to locate a SSTS outside of a 
floodplain, location within the flood fringe is allowed if the requirements in MN Rules, 
Chapter 7080.0172 and all relevant local requirements are met. 

 
5.4 Class V Injection Wells 

 

All owners of new or replacement SSTS that are considered to be Class V injection wells, 
as defined in the Code of Federal Regulations, Title 40, part 144, are required by the 
Federal Government to submit SSTS inventory information to the Environmental 
Protection Agency as described in CFR40, part 144.  Further, owners are required to 
identify all Class V injection wells in property transfer disclosures. 

 
5.5 SSTS Licensing Requirements 
 

 5.51 License Required 
No person shall engage in site evaluation, inspection, design, installation, 
construction, alteration, extension, repair, maintenance, or pumping of SSTS in 
Roseau County without an appropriate and valid license issued by MPCA in 
accordance with Minnesota Rules Chapter 7083, unless exempted as outlined in 
part 7083.0700, (see also Section 5.52 of this Ordinance). 

8 
 



 

 
5.52 License Exemption.   A license is not required for: 

A. An individual who is constructing a system on land that is owned or leased by 
the individual and functions solely as a dwelling for that individual based 
upon a design by a MPCA-licensed designer.  A Permit shall be obtained from 
the Department, the system shall be inspected before being covered and as-
built plans submitted in accordance with this Ordinance.  A Certificate of 
Compliance or Notice of Non- compliance will be issued by the Inspector.  

 B. An individual who performs labor or services for an MPCA-licensed SSTS 
Professional. 

 C. A farmer who pumps sewage waste from individual sewage treatment systems 
from dwellings that are owned or leased by the farmer, and disposes of those 
wastes on land that is owned or leased by the farmer. 

 
5.6 Prohibitions  

 
5.61 Sewage Discharge to Ground Surface or Surface Water 

 It is unlawful for any person to construct, maintain, or use any SSTS regulated 
under this Ordinance that results in raw or partially treated wastewater seeping to 
the ground surface or flowing into any surface water.  Any surface discharging 
system must be permitted under the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System program administered by the MPCA. 

 5.62 Sewage Discharge to a Well or Boring 

It is unlawful for any person to discharge raw or treated wastewater into any well 
or boring as described in MN Rules, Chapter 4725.2050, or any other surface 
excavation that is not in compliance with this Ordinance. 

 5.63 Discharge of Hazardous or Deleterious Materials 

It is unlawful for any person to discharge into any treatment system regulated 
under this Ordinance any hazardous or deleterious material that adversely affects 
the treatment or dispersal performance of the system or groundwater quality. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

9 
 



 

SECTION 6: SSTS STANDARDS 
 
6.1 Standards Adopted By Reference 

 
6.11 Minnesota Rules Chapter 7080 and 7081. 

The County hereby adopts by reference the 2006 Minnesota Rules Chapter 7080, 
as the alternative local standards for new and replacement residential systems 
with a flow of less than 2,500 gallons per day.  In addition, existing alternative 
local standards for Roseau County are outlined in Section 6.2 of this Ordinance.   

The County hereby adopts by reference the 2011 Minnesota Rules Chapters 7080 
and 7081, for new and replacement systems with a flow greater than 2,500 gallons 
per day. Specific elements required by the 2011 Rules for all sizes of systems are 
listed in Section 6.3 of this Ordinance. 

This adoption does not supersede the County’s right or ability to adopt local 
standards that are in compliance with MN Statute 115.55.  

 
6.12 Minnesota Rules Chapters 4715, 4725 and Table 1 define the minimum set- 

back distances for sewage treatment systems. 
 

Table 1. Minimum Setback Distances (feet) for Sewage Treatment Systems 

Feature Sewage tank, holding 
tank, or sealed privy 

Absorption area or 
unsealed privy 

Water supply Wells 50 50 
Water supply Wells with 
less than 50 feet of 
casing 

100 100 

Buried water lines – 
suction 

50 50 

Buried water lines-under 
pressure 

10 10 

Buried lines – electric 
line, LP tank, gas pipe 

10 10 

Buildings 10 20 
Property lines 10 10 
OHWL of public waters 75 75 

 

  

10 
 



 

6.13 Federal Regulations Code 40, Part 503, MPCA Septage Management 
Guidelines #4.20, and Table 2 define the Septage Disposal and Treatment 
Setbacks. 

 

Table 2. Minimum Setback Distances from the Land Application Site 
 

  Setback Distances in Feet 
Feature Slope Surface 

Applied 
Incorporated 

within 6 hours 
Injected 

     
Private drinking 
water supply 
wells 

 200 200 200 

Public drinking 
water supply 
wells 

 1000 1000 1000 

Irrigation wells  50 25 25 
Residences  200 200 100 
Residential 
Developments 

 600 600 300 

Public Contact 
Sites 

 600 600 300 

Property Lines  50 50 50 
Public Road Right 
of Ways 

 50 50 50 

Lakes*  1000 1000 1000 
Rivers and 
Streams* 

 300 300 300 

Down gradient 
wetlands, 
Intermittent 
streams, or tile 
Inlets connected 
to these surface 
water features* 

Slope 0% to 6% 
 
Slope 6% to 12% 
 
Winter 0% to 2% 

200 
 

Not allowed 
 

600 

50 
 

100  
 

Not Applicable 

50 
 

100 
 

Not Applicable 

Grassed Water 
Ways 

Slope 0% to 6% 100 33 33 

 
*Lakes, rivers and streams:  Septage shall not be land spread in designated shoreland management areas 
as identified in the “Roseau County Shoreland Ordinance”. 
 

 
6.2 Alternative Local Standards (ALS) 
 6.21 Compliance Criteria for Existing SSTS with “ALS” Vertical Separation  

A. Existing “ALS” SSTS that are Failing to Protect Groundwater 
SSTS built before April 1, 1996 outside of protected areas designated as 
floodplain and/or shoreland, wellhead protection, or areas where SSTS 
provide sewage treatment for food, beverage, or lodging establishments shall 
have at least two (2)  feet of vertical separation between the bottom of the 
dispersal system and seasonal saturation or bedrock per Minnesota Rules 

11 
 



 

Chapter 7080.0060, Subp 3. Existing systems with less than two (2) feet 
vertical separation in these areas may fail to protect groundwater and shall be 
upgraded, replaced, or its use discontinued within five (5) years of the owner’s 
receipt of a Notice of Noncompliance.    
 

B. Existing “ALS” SSTS that are an Imminent Public Health Threats 
Existing “ALS” systems built outside of the protected areas designated as 
floodplain and/or shoreland, wellhead protection, or areas where SSTS 
provide sewage treatment for food, beverage, or lodging establishments and 
determined to be an imminent threat to public health or safety in accordance 
with Minnesota Rules Chapter 7080.1500, Subp 4A, shall be upgraded, 
replaced, or its use discontinued within sixty (60) days of the owner’s receipt 
of a Notice of Noncompliance. 

 
6.22 “ALS” Vertical Separation for New and Replacement SSTS 

A. For new “ALS” systems, a minimum of two (2) feet vertical separation shall 
be allowed between the bottom of the dispersal system and the seasonal 
saturation or bedrock located in areas other than floodplain, shoreland, 
wellhead protection, and areas with food, beverage or lodging establishments, 
(see also Section 6.23 of this Ordinance).  

 B. Site suitability requirements must be met whenever a SSTS is installed, 
replaced, altered, or extended.  The following parameters shall be met: 

(1) For unsaturated soil separation, three (3) separate soil samples from three 
(3) field locations must be taken for observation by the designer and 
referenced to the NRCS Soils Survey, analyzed for mottling/residual 
mottling features, and/or percolation tests must be conducted to determine 
sizing of the system. The analysis results must be verified on-site by the 
Department. 

(2)  Soil Types. ALS systems shall not be allowed in poorly drained and 
rapidly permeable soils, as delineated in the NRCS Soils Survey for 
Roseau County, which is the official County soil classifications reference. 

(3) Placement and construction of wells in proximity. Setback requirements 
for wells shall follow the requirements of the Department of Health, (see 
also Section 6.12 of this Ordinance).   

(4) Density of SSTS.  SSTS constructed to ALS standards shall not be 
permitted to exceed one (1) system per two (2) acre parcel. All sites to be 
developed must have space for at least two (2) systems and must meet the 
setbacks outlined in the Section 6.12 of this Ordinance, and the Roseau 
County Shoreland Ordinance. 

(5) Existing natural and constructed drainage systems. A drainage plan shall 
be provided to the Department with each SSTS permit application. The 

12 
 



 

Plan must designate existing drainage features and any proposed new 
drainage.  The Plan must specify surface and/or groundwater flows 
relative to the proposed SSTS, as well as the locations of all public and 
private drainage systems. If ditching or tile systems currently exist and/or 
are proposed, a minimum ten (10) foot setback must be maintained from 
all components of the SSTS.  

 6.23 Locations where the Alternative Local Standards do not Apply 

 A.  Systems in the designated Shoreland district regulated under MN Rules 
Chapters 103F.201 to 103F.221; 

 B.  Wellhead protection areas regulated under MN Rules Chapter 103I; and 

  C.   Systems used in connection with food, beverage, and lodging establishments, 
                regulated under MN Rules Chapter 157. 
                         

ALS for new or replacement residential systems with a flow of 2,500 gallons per day or 
less may be applied to systems in part A provided the alternative standards are no less 
stringent than provisions of Minnesota Rules Chapter 7080, that went into effect on April 
3, 2006. In addition, ALS for new or replacement systems with a flow of 2,500 gallons 
per day or less may be applied to systems in part C provided the alternative standards are 
no less stringent than provisions of Minnesota Rules Chapter 7080, that went into effect 
on April 3, 2006, except that the waste strength must meet the standards established in 
Minnesota Rules, part 7080.2150, subpart 3, item K.  If additional treatment of waste is 
needed to meet this standard, the treatment must be in accordance with Minnesota Rules, 
part 7080.2150, subpart 3, item A. 

6.24 Soil Dispute Resolutions 

The Department will determine the final decision on the depth of periodically 
saturated soils should a disagreement occurs between the designated Department 
representative and any licensed business.  

6.25 Holding Tanks 

Holding tanks may be allowed under the following conditions: 

A. Must comply with Minnesota Rules Section 7080.0172, subp 3; 

B. As replacements for SSTS that are failing, or pose an imminent threat to 
public health, and on lots existing as of the effective date of this Ordinance 
where it can be shown that a SSTS permitted under this Ordinance cannot be 
feasibly installed; 

C. Operating Plan. Holding tanks must also comply with the following 
conditional provisions: 

13 
 



 

1) The owner shall install an alarm in order to adequately manage the system; 

2) The Maintainer shall record the date the tank is pumped, volume of waste 
removed, and the discharge location. The record shall be provided to the 
owner and made available to the Department upon request. 

3) The Operating Plan shall be submitted with the Permit application, per 
7080.0310, subd. 6. 

6.26 Privies 

Privies that meet all of the following criteria may be designed with ALS vertical 
separation. 

A. The privy is in a remote area with a minimum lot size of two (2) acres. 

B. Must not be located within a floodplain, shoreland or on hydric soils as 
indicated in the NRCS Soil Survey for Roseau County. 

C. The privy is not in a wetland as indicated on the National Wetland Inventory 
Map. 

D. The privy shall be located at least a hundred (100) feet from any existing well. 

6.27 Lot Size for Treatment Area 

All lots created after January 23, 1996 shall include a minimum of two (2) soil 
treatment and dispersal areas that can support Type 1 systems as described in 
Minnesota Rules, Section 7080.0170 Subps 2, 5 and 6. 

 6.28 Standards Must Comply with other Laws and Rules 

Alternative Local Standards must comply with requirements of other applicable 
State Laws, State Rules and County Ordinances. 

 
6.3 2011 MN Rule Elements included in this Ordinance  

 
6.31 Sewage Tanks 
 
 > Tank Strength Requirements, 7080.1910, Subp 1. 

 > Poured-in-place concrete tanks, 7080.1910, Subp 2. 

 > Septic Tank Design, 7080.1920 A – E. 

  

14 
 



 

 

> Septic Tank Capacity, 7080.1930, per the following table:  

 
Liquid Capacity of Septic Tanks 

# of 
Bedrooms 

Septic Tank 
Capacity (GPD) 

With a Garbage Disposal 
and/or a Pump (GPD) 

3 or less 1000 1500 

4 or 5 1500 2250 

6 or 7 2000 3000 

8 or 9 2500 3750 

  

 > Multiple Septic Tanks, 7080.1940. 

 > Compartmentalization of Single Tanks, 7080.1950 A – E. 

 > Septic Tank Baffles, 7080.1960 A – G. 

 > Sewage Tank Access, 7080.1970 A – D. 

 > Tank Construction, 7080.1980 A – B. 

 > Tank Storage, Transport and Use, 7080.1990 Subp 1 and 2. 

 > Location and Installation of Tanks, 7080.2000 A – K. 

 > Tank Assessment, 7080.2010 Subp 1, 2 and 3. 

 > Tank Identification, 7080.2020 A – D. 
 
6.32 Registered Products 

> Final Treatment and Dispersal, 7080.2150, including soil sizing Tables IX and 
IXa. 

 
6.33 Vertical Separation Flexibility:  15% Flexibility, 7080.1500 Subp 4D   

> A reduced vertical separation for existing systems is allowed for SSTS that 
were designed with at least a three (3) foot vertical separation distance.  The 
maximum of fifteen (15) percent reduction, (a separation distance no less than 
30.6 inches), is only allowed to account for settling of sand or soil, normal 
variation of measurements, and interpretations of the limiting layer conditions.  
The vertical separation measurement shall be made outside the area of system 
influence but in an area of similar soil.   

 
 
 
 

15 
 



 

6.34 Trench and Seepage Bed Design, 7080.2210, Subp 4D 
  

> The minimum depth of soil cover, including topsoil borrow, over the 
distribution medium is six (6) inches, (2006 Rules). 

6.4 List of Technical Differences in Ordinance from 2011 MN Rules Chapters 7080 and 
7081 

A. Alternative Local Standards “ALS” Vertical Separation, (reference 6.21- 6.22). 

B. Locations where Alternative Local Standards do not apply, (reference 6.23). 

C. 2006 Minnesota Rules implemented as Alternative Local Standards, as follows: 

 (1) Pressure lateral spacing, as defined in 2006 Rules Section 7080.0150, Subp 3F. 

 (2) Flow measurement, per pump installation, is not required in the 2006 Rules; 
therefore, 2011 Rule Sections 7080.2210,2220, 2230, 2240, 2270, and 2300 
concerning flow measurement are not mandatory.  

 (3) Should a technical difference exists that is not listed in the 2011Minnesota Rule 
Elements, (reference Section 6.3), the 2006 Rules Chapter 7080 provisions shall 
prevail.  

 

SECTION 7: VARIANCES 

 

7.1 Variance Requests 

A property owner may request a Variance from the standards as specified in this 
Ordinance pursuant to County policies and procedures outlined in the Roseau County 
Shoreland Ordinance, (adopted by reference as an Attachment to this Ordinance). 

7.2 MPCA – State Notification 
The County must notify the MPCA at least ten (10) days prior to any public hearing 
involving a variance request that pertains to the standards and requirements contained in 
this Ordinance.  

7.3 Board of Adjustment 
The Board of Adjustment shall administer all variance requests per the policies and 
procedures outlined in the Roseau County Shoreland Ordinance. 

 

 

 

16 
 



 

SECTION 8: SSTS PERMITS AND PLANS 
 
8.1 SSTS Permits Required 
 It is unlawful for any person to construct, install, modify, repair or replace a SSTS 

without the appropriate Permit from the Department. The issuing of any Permit, 
Variance, or Conditional Use Permit under the provisions of this Ordinance shall not 
absolve the applicant of responsibility to obtain any other required Permit. 

8.2 Activities Requiring a SSTS Permit 
All contractors, property owners or other persons having charge of the SSTS 
construction, replacement, and/or major modifications of SSTS, shall obtain a SSTS 
Permit from the Department prior to starting construction.  Permits shall be granted upon 
receipt of a completed application, (reference Section 8.5 of this Ordinance).  

8.3 Activities Not Requiring a SSTS Permit 
A SSTS construction Permit is not required for minor repairs or replacements of system 
components that do not alter the original function of the system, change the treatment 
capacity of the system, change the location of the system, or otherwise change the 
original system’s design, layout, or function.  

8.4 SSTS Permit Requirements in Floodplain and Shoreland Districts  
For development in areas regulated by the Roseau County Shoreland and/or  Floodplain 
Management Ordinance(s), a valid SSTS Permit for a new system or a Certificate of 
Compliance for an existing SSTS, must be submitted to the Department prior to approval 
and issuance of a Building Permit.  

8.5 SSTS Permit Applications 
SSTS construction Permit applications shall be made on forms provided by the 
Department and signed by the applicant. The application shall include, but is not limited 
to, the information and documents listed in items A through E below.  Completed 
applications shall be examined and approved or denied by the Department. 

A. Name, mailing address, telephone number, (and email address if available.) 

B. Property Identification Number, address, or other description of property location. 

C. Site Evaluation Report, including soil analysis and verification utilizing at least three 
(3) soil observations made in exposed pits or by hand auger/probe prior to 
construction.  The depth to the periodically saturated soil shall be determined by the 
parameters outlined in Section 6 of this Ordinance. The soil verification shall be made 
by a qualified employee or licensed inspection business authorized by the 
Department.  The soil boring log with soil verification signature shall be submitted 
with the analysis report to the Department. 

D. Design Reports and any documents described in MN Rules Chapter 7080.0110-
7080.0115. 

17 
 



 

E. Management Plan, (reference Section 9 of the Ordinance). 

F. Operating Plan, if applicable, (reference Ordinance Section 8.10). 

8.6 Permit Application Review and Response 
The Department shall review the Permit application and supporting documentation. Upon 
satisfaction that the proposed work will conform to the provisions of this Ordinance, the 
Department shall issue written Permit authorizing construction of the SSTS as designed 
within fifteen (15) working days of receipt of all the required documentation. In the event 
the applicant makes a significant change to the approved application, the applicant must 
file an amended application detailing the changed conditions for approval prior to 
initiating or continuing construction, modification, or operation for approval or denial. 
The Department shall complete the review of the amended application within fifteen (15) 
working days of receipt of the amended application.  If the Permit application is 
incomplete, or does not meet the requirements of the Ordinance, the Department shall 
deny the application. A Notice of Denial shall be provided to the applicant which must 
state the reason(s) for the denial. 

8.7 Appeal 
The applicant may appeal the Department’s decision to deny the Construction Permit in 
accordance with the County’s established policies and procedures. 

8.8 SSTS Permit Expiration 
The SSTS Permit is valid for a period of one (1) year from its date of issue.  An extension 
of the permit may be granted at the discretion of the Department. 

8.9 Transferability 
A Construction Permit shall not be transferred to a new owner.  The new owner must 
apply for a new Construction Permit in accordance with this Section. 

8.10 Operating Permits 
 An Operating Permit shall be required of all owners of new holding tanks, Type IV,  
 Type V and MSTS. 
  
8.11 Suspension or Revocation 

The Department may suspend or revoke a Construction Permit issued under this Section 
for any false statements, misrepresentation of facts on which the Permit was issued, or 
unauthorized changes to the system design that alter the original function, treatment 
capacity, location, or otherwise change the original system’s design, layout, or function. 
A Notice of Suspension or Revocation, and the reasons for the suspension or revocation, 
shall be conveyed in writing to the permittee.  If suspended or revoked, installation or 
modification of a system may not commence until a valid Permit is obtained. 

 

 

 

18 
 



 

SECTION 9: MANAGEMENT PLANS 
 
9.1 Purpose 
 The purpose of a Management Plan is to describe how a particular SSTS is intended to be 

operated and maintained to sustain the required performance. The Plan must be provided 
by the certified designer to the system owner when the system is commissioned. 

 
9.2 Management Plan Requirements 
 Management Plans are required for all new or replacement SSTS. The Plan shall be 

submitted to the Department with the final Construction Certification for review and 
approval.   

9.3 Management Plan Contents 
Management Plans shall include: 

A. Operating requirements describing tasks that the owner can perform and tasks that a 
licensed maintainer must perform; 

B. Monitoring requirements; 

C. Maintenance requirements, including maintenance procedures and a schedule for 
      routine maintenance; 

D. Disclosure of the location of the additional soil treatment area(s) on the property; 

E. Other requirements as determined by the Department. 

 

SECTION 10: SSTS INSPECTION REQUIREMENTS 
 
10.1 Compliance Inspection Program 
 A. SSTS Compliance Inspections are performed: 

(1) To ensure compliance with applicable requirements; 

(2) For all new SSTS construction or replacement; and for existing system upgrade, 
repair or modification; 

(3) To ensure system compliance before issuance of a Building Permit for the 
addition of a bedroom on properties served by an SSTS located in the designated 
Floodplain and/or Shoreland District(s).  The County may temporarily waive the 
Certificate of Compliance requirement for the permit application made during 
the period from November 1 to April 30 with provisions for compliance 
inspection to be made the following June 1st ; 

(4) Any time the Department deems appropriate, such as upon receiving a written 
complaint or other reliable information of system failure. 

19 
 



 

B. All compliance inspections must be performed and signed by licensed inspection 
business or qualified employee.    

C. The Department shall be given access to enter a property at any reasonable time to 
inspect and/or monitor the SSTS system.  As used in this paragraph, “property” does 
not include a residence or private building.   

D. No person shall hinder or otherwise interfere with the Department’s employees in the 
performance of their duties and responsibilities pursuant to this Ordinance. Refusal to 
allow reasonable access to the property by the Department shall be deemed a separate 
and distinct offense. 

10.2 New Construction or Replacement 
A. Compliance inspections must be performed on new or replacement SSTS during 

construction and installation of a SSTS before it is covered with soil, unless 
acceptable photographs or video documentation are provided,  to determine 
compliance with MN Rules Chapters 7080 or 7081.  

B. It shall be the responsibility of the installer to notify the inspector to arrange for the 
inspection.   

C. The Certificate of Compliance must include a certified statement by the licensed 
inspector who conducted the inspection that the SSTS is or is not in compliance with 
the Ordinance requirements.  If the SSTS is determined not to be in compliance with 
the applicable requirements, a Notice of Noncompliance shall be issued to the owner 
by the Department which includes a statement specifying those Ordinance provisions 
with which the SSTS does not comply.   

D. The Certificate of Compliance or Notice of Noncompliance must be submitted to the 
Department no later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the date the inspection was 
performed.  

E. Certificates of Compliance for new construction or replacement shall remain valid for 
five (5) years from the date of issue, unless the Department finds evidence of 
noncompliance. 

10.3 Existing Systems 
A. Compliance inspections shall be required when any of the following conditions occur: 

(1) When a Construction Permit is required to repair, modify, or upgrade an existing 
system; 

(2) When there is a change in use of the property being served by an existing SSTS 
which may impact the performance of the system; 

(3) At the time of a Building Permit or Variance request within the designated 
Floodplain and/or Shoreland Districts of  the County;  

(4) As required by this Ordinance, or as deemed appropriate by the Department; such 
as, upon receipt of a written/signed complaint or other reliable notice of a system 
malfunction. 

20 
 



 

B. Compliance inspections of existing non-ALS SSTS shall be reported on the 
inspection report forms provided by MPCA; inspections of SSTS constructed to ALS 
shall be reported on forms provided by the Department and the MPCA. 

C. If the SSTS is determined not to be in compliance with the Ordinance requirements, a 
Notice of Noncompliance must include a statement specifying those Ordinance 
provisions with which the SSTS does not comply.  Non-compliant SSTS that are  
IPHTs shall be replaced within sixty (60) days of inspection and SSTS that are failing 
shall be replaced within five (5) years of inspection.  The Certificate of Compliance 
or Notice of Noncompliance shall be provided to the property owner or owner’s agent 
and the original Certificate of Compliance or Notice of Noncompliance shall be 
submitted with the inspection report to the Department by the licensed inspector 
conducting the inspection within fifteen (15) days after the date the inspection was 
performed. 

D. Certificates of Compliance for existing SSTS shall remain valid for three (3) years 
from the date of issue unless the Department finds evidence of noncompliance. 

 
10.4 Disclaimer 

Neither the issuance of Permits, Certificates of Compliance, nor Notices of 
Noncompliance as requested or issued shall be construed to represent a guarantee or 
warranty of the system's operation or effectiveness. Such Certificates signify that the 
system in question is, or has been, designed and installed in compliance or non-
compliance with the provisions of these standards and regulations.  

 

SECTION 11: ENFORCEMENT 
 
11.1 Violations 
 11.11 Cause to Issue a Notice of Violation 

Any person, firm, agent, or corporation who violates any of the provisions of this 
Ordinance; or, who fails, neglects, or refuses to comply with the provisions of this 
Ordinance, including violations of conditions and safeguards, including the 
requirement for the system to be upgraded, replaced or its use discontinued; or, 
who knowingly makes any material false statement or knowing omission in any 
document required to be submitted under the provisions hereof, may be guilty of a 
misdemeanor and upon conviction thereof, shall be punishable as prescribed by 
the applicable Minnesota Statutes. Each day that a violation exists shall constitute 
a separate offense.   

 
 11.12 Notice of Violation 
 

The Department shall serve, in person or by mail, a Notice of Violation to any 
person determined to be violating provisions of this Ordinance. The Notice of 
Violation shall contain: 
 

21 
 



 

A. A statement documenting the findings-of-fact determined through 
observations, inspections, or investigations; 

B. A list of specific violation(s) of this Ordinance; 

C. Specific requirements for correction or removal of the specified violation(s); 

D. A mandatory time schedule for correction, removal and compliance with this 
Ordinance; 

 

 11.13 Cease and Desist Orders 
Cease and Desist Orders may be issued when the Department has probable cause 
that an activity regulated by this Ordinance is being conducted without a Permit 
or in violation of a Permit. When a project has been stopped by an Order, the 
project shall not resume until the violation has been corrected, any administrative 
fees paid, and the Order rescinded. 

 
11.14 Administrative Fees 
 

Any application for a Permit that is made after the work has commenced and 
which requires a Permit, or is done in violation of a Permit, shall be charged an 
additional “after-the-fact” administrative fee, (reference Section 12 of this 
Ordinance). 

 
11.15 Reimbursements for Restoration 
 

The Department may require correction and/or restoration of the property to its 
original state should the application for a Permit be denied or if the action 
permitted does not include all or part of the work commenced prior to approval of 
said Permit. The Department may recover the cost incurred in removal or 
abatement in a civil action; or, at the discretion of the County Board, the cost of 
an enforcement action under this Ordinance may be assessed and charged against 
the real property on which the public health nuisance was located.  The County 
Auditor may extend the cost as assessed and charged on the tax roll against said 
real property. 

 
11.2 Prosecution 
In the event of a violation or threatened violation of this Ordinance, the County may seek other 
remedies, initiate appropriate civil action or proceedings to prevent, prosecute, restrain, correct 
or abate such violations or threatened violations, including any criminal prosecution and the 
County Attorney shall have authority to commence such civil action.  The Department and 
County Attorney may take such actions as may be necessary to enforce the provisions of this 
Ordinance.  

 

 

22 
 



 

SECTION 12: FEES 
From time to time, the County Board shall establish fees for activities undertaken by the 
Department pursuant to this Ordinance.  Fees shall be due and payable at a time and in a manner 
to be determined by the Department, (reference Attachment A for the current Fee Schedule). 

 
SECTION 13: ADOPTION 
The Roseau County Subsurface Sewage Treatment System Ordinance is hereby adopted by the 
Roseau County Board of Commissioners on the_____ day of _______, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
         Chairperson, Roseau County Board of Commissioners 

 

Attest:  

 

_________________________________________________________ 
                 Roseau County Coordinator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and execution: 
 
 
 
__________________________________________________________ 
                      Roseau County Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23 
 



Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

 
 

Agenda Item #:  Board of Appeal and Equalization  
(for office use only) 
Requested Board Date: 6/24/14 Originating Department:  Assessor’s Office 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
Continuation of June 17, 2014 County Board of Appeal and 
Equalization 

Presenter:  Al Heim 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 

☐< 5 minutes ☐ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes 

☒ 15 minutes ☐ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 

Board Action Requested: 
     The Board will reconvene the June 17, 2014 County Board of Appeal and Equalization meeting. 

Background: 
      

Supporting Documentation: ☒ Attached ☐ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 

☐ Delegations  ☐ Consent Agenda 

☐ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 

☐ County Board Items ☒ Other 
 

 
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 

 

Board Action: 
 Approved as Requested:    
 Denied:    
 Tabled:    
 Other:    

Distribution/Filing Instructions:   

 



Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

 
 

Agenda Item #:   Consent 1  
(for office use only) 
Requested Board Date: 6/24/14 Originating Department:  Coordinator’s Office 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
June 10, 2014 Board Proceedings 

Presenter:  Jeff Pelowski 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 

☒< 5 minutes ☐ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes 

☐ 15 minutes ☐ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 
Board Action Requested: 
Review and approve the June 10, 2014 Board Proceedings.  

Background: 
      
 

Supporting Documentation: ☒ Attached ☐ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 

☐ Delegations  ☒ Consent Agenda 

☐ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 
☐ County Board Items ☐ Other 
 

 
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 

 

Board Action: 
 Approved as Requested:    
 Denied:    
 Tabled:    
 Other:    

Distribution/Filing Instructions:   

 



 
PROCEEDINGS OF THE ROSEAU COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
June 10, 2014 

 
The Board of Commissioners of Roseau County, Minnesota met in the Courthouse in 

the City of Roseau, Minnesota on Tuesday, June 10, 2014. 
 

CALL TO ORDER – ROLL CALL – ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM  
 
 The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m. by Board Chair Glenda Phillipe.  The 
Pledge of Allegiance was recited.  Commissioners present were Roger Falk, Mark Foldesi, 
Todd Miller, Glenda Phillipe and Jack Swanson.   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 

Commissioner Swanson requested a discussion on the AMC “Waters of the United 
States” EPA letter be added to Unfinished Business.  Commissioner Phillipe requested a 
discussion with Sheriff Gust be added to Department Reports and Commissioner Foldesi 
requested a discussion on the use of Con Con funds be added to County Board Items.  A 
motion to approve the amended agenda was made by Commissioner Swanson, seconded 
by Commissioner Foldesi and carried unanimously.  

 
COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 Commissioner Swanson reminded the Board that there was a County Fair Planning 
Committee meeting immediately following today’s Board meeting and that a fair booth sign-
up sheet is now available.  Coordinator Pelowski reminded the Board of the County Building 
Committee meeting scheduled for 11:00 a.m., after today’s Board meeting. 
 
APPROVAL OF BILLS 
 

A motion was made by Commissioner Foldesi, seconded by Commissioner Falk and 
carried unanimously to approve the payment of the following bills: 
 
Warrants Approved On 5/27/2014 For Payment 5/30/2014 
 Vendor Name  Amount 
 AVIANDS LLC  7,805.56 
 ELECTION SYSTEMS & SOFTWARE INC                            11,034.39 
 NORTHERN RESOURCES COOPERATIVE  3,072.61 
 O'DONNELL/JEFF  4,960.00 
 UND FORENSIC PATHOLOGHY  2,000.00 
 50    Payments less than 2,000.00                                         21,604.52 
 Final Total:                                                                            50,477.08 
 
Warrants Approved For Payment 5/29/2014 
 Vendor Name Amount 
 AFLAC  5,502.24 
 5    Payments less than 2,000.00 1,502.46 
 Final Total: 7,004.70 
 
Warrants Approved For Payment 6/05/2014 
 Vendor Name Amount 
 DEARBORN NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCE 2,177.26 
 JOHNSON/LAURE A 3,526.88 



 
 NW MN SERV COOP-BLUE CROSS BLUE                          77,768.50 
 PRUDENTIAL  2,261.96 
 RIVERFRONT STATION 2,503.39 
 ROSEAU CO TRAILBLAZERS 5,698.04 
 16    Payments less than 2,000.00 9,153.19 
 Final Total:                                                                           103,089.22 
 

Warrants Approved On 6/10/2014 For Payment 6/13/2014 
 Vendor Name Amount 
 AMERICAN SOLUTIONS FOR BUSINESS  4,856.71 
 FARMERS UNION OIL CO-LK BRNSN  4,748.47 
 FARMERS UNION OIL CO-WARROAD  9,263.40 
 HENAGIN/BAILIE  2,546.90 
 M & R SIGN CO INC  3,269.10 
 MAR-KIT LANDFILL                                                               43,496.25 
 MULTI OFFICE PRODUCTS INC  2,357.61 
 NORTHERN RESOURCES COOPERATIVE                        10,090.64 
 ROSEAU CO COOP ASSN                                                  11,138.93 
 SJOBERG'S INC  2,668.25 
 TRUE NORTH STEEL  7,765.88 
 UND FORENSIC PATHOLOGHY  2,294.35 
 YAGER/MARK  2,000.00 
 ZIEGLER INC                                                                        13,965.79 
 89   Payments less than 2,000.00                                         38,083.97 
 Final Total:                                                                          158,546.25 

 
 In addition, the Board approved forthwith payments to Randy Erickson in the amount 
of $1,080.00, for beaver removal on CD 17 and SD 69 and to Delphin Wahl, in the amount 
of $1,170.00, for beaver removal on CD 17 and SD 69. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 A motion to adopt the Consent Agenda was made by Commissioner Falk, seconded 
by Commissioner Swanson and carried unanimously.  The Board, by adoption of its 
Consent Agenda, approved the May 27, 2014 Board Proceedings; approved Don Dunn to 
staff the Veterans Service Office through June 20, 2014; and, appointed Jack Swanson to 
the AMC Broadband Sub-committee. 
 
COUNTY BOARD ITEMS 
 
Establish HSEM Interview Committee 
 The Board discussed establishing the interview Committee for the County Homeland 
Security and Emergency Manager position.  It was agreed that the full Board will serve as 
the interview Committee and that a sub-committee of Coordinator Pelowski and 
Commissioners Miller and Phillipe will meet to review applications and develop a list of 
candidates to be interviewed. 
 
Distribution of Con Con Funds 
 Commissioner Foldesi inquired as to whether Con Con funds could be used to assist 
the City of Strathcona in gravel road repair.  Auditor Monsrud will check Minnesota Statutes 
to determine if Con Con funds can be spent for road repair in an organized City. 
 
 
 



 
BID OPENING 

Roseau County Auditor Martha Monsrud, MnDOT District Highway Engineer Lou 
Tasa and Roseau County Highway Engineer Brian Ketring received bids for CSAH 2, SP 
068-602-041 (repair damaged centerline culvert) and CSAH 5, SP 068-605-009 (repair of a 
slope failure in the south bound driving lane).  Both projects are 2011 Federal Flood Projects 
administered by State and Federal Highway authorities.  Mr. Tasa opened and read the bids 
as follows:  1. R & Q Trucking:  The bid bond was included and signed for the bid in the 
amount of $363,370.00.  2.  Taggart Excavating:  The bid bond was included and signed for 
the bid in the amount of $350,780.00.  Mr. Tasa and Mr. Ketring were excused to review the 
bids in order to report back to the Board prior to the end of the meeting. 
 
MnDOT 
 Mr. Tasa provided information on the proposed 2014 and 2015 Construction 
Program for District 2.  Tasa also shared statistics which showed how seat belt use in 
Northwest Minnesota is increasing but is still the lowest in the State and that distracted 
driving is still a major issue that law enforcement will be monitoring heavily. 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 
Highway Department 
 District Engineer Lou Tasa and County Highway Engineer Brian Ketring returned to 
the Board meeting to review and request approval of bids received on CSAH 2 and CSAH 5.  
A motion to award a contract to Taggart Contracting, Inc., pending State of Minnesota 
review and approval, in the amount of $350,780.00, for SP 068-602-041 and SP 068-605-
009, was made by Commissioner Miller, seconded by Commissioner Falk and carried 
unanimously. 
 
Sheriff Department 
 Commissioner Phillipe requested Sheriff Gust clarify statements made to District 1 
constituents with regard to signage of a no-wake zone on the Warroad River.  Constituents 
have called Commissioner Phillipe and stated that they were told by Sheriff Gust that the 
reason no-wake signs were not being installed was due to Commissioner Phillipe’s 
opposition.  Sheriff Gust referenced a meeting last fall where Commissioners opposed 
adopting a no-wake zone ordinance.  Commissioner Phillipe requested specifics on the date 
and minutes of the meeting Sheriff Gust referred to.   Gust stated that he is not opposed to 
installing the signs but would not be able to enforce a no-wake zone without an ordinance.  
Commissioner Phillipe requested that the no-wake ordinance be re-visited at a later date. 
 
 In addition, Commissioner Phillipe requested confirmation as to whether or not 
Sheriff Gust had received her emails regarding the possibility of the Sentence to Serve 
(STS) crew cleaning the CN Railroad Corridor of Warroad.  Sheriff Gust stated that he had 
received the emails and the STS crew had been out working on the area.   
 
 Commissioner Swanson inquired into Roseau County’s status on the Paul Bunyan 
Task Force.  Sheriff Gust will discuss this matter further at the July Committee of the Whole 
Meeting.  Commissioner Miller requested background information on the taskforce prior to 
that meeting. 
 
 Commissioner Falk conveyed a conversation he had with STS Coordinator Rick Von-
Ende on the condition of the STS equipment noting that out of seven lawn mowers only two 
are in full operation and the equipment trailer is in disrepair.  Sheriff Gust noted that STS is 
a state-funded program but will look into this matter. 
 
 



 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
“Waters of the United States”  
 Commissioner Swanson shared a letter written by AMC to the Environmental 
Protection Agency with regard to comments on the proposed regulations regarding definition 
of “Waters of the United States.”  Commissioner Swanson requested Commissioner input on 
the letter’s content prior to his next meeting with the AMC Executive Board scheduled for 
Friday, June 20, 2014. 
 
Commissioner Committee Reports 
 Commissioner Falk reported on the following committee(s):  Committee of the 
Whole/Operations Committee, 6/3/14; Northwest Regional Development Commission, 
6/9/14. 
 
 Commissioner Miller reported on the following committee(s):  Warroad River 
Watershed District, 5/28/14; Minnesota Rural Counties Caucus, 6/2/14; Committee of the 
Whole/Operations Committee, 6/3/14; Northern Counties Land Use Coordinating Board, 
6/5/14. 
 
 Commissioner Phillipe reported on the following committee(s):  Committee of the 
Whole/Operations Committee, 6/3/14; Roseau County Committee on Aging, 6/9/14; 
Warroad City Council, 6/9/14. 
 

Commissioner Swanson reported on the following committee(s):  Roseau Economic 
Development Authority, 5/28/14; County Leadership Institute (Washington D.C.), 6/1-6/5/14; 
Roseau County Committee on Aging, 6/9/14. 

 
Upon motion carried, the Board adjourned the Regular Meeting at 11:00 a.m. The 

next Regular Meeting of the Board is scheduled for June 24, 2014 at 9:00 a.m.  
 
Attest: Date:   
 
    
Jeff Pelowski, County Coordinator Glenda Phillipe, Chair 
Roseau County, Minnesota  Board of County Commissioners 
 Roseau County, Minnesota 



Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

 
 

Agenda Item #:   Consent 2  
(for office use only) 
Requested Board Date: 6/24/14 Originating Department:  Commissioner 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
4-22-14 Board Proceedings 

Presenter:  Commissioner Foldesi 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 

☒< 5 minutes ☐ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes 

☐ 15 minutes ☐ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 
Board Action Requested: 
Correction to April 22, 2014 Board Proceedings.  

Background: 
     Requesting change to the public comments section to indicate that the sample of gravel brought to the meeting 
was taken out of Mr. Jenson’s yard which initially came from the Isane pit.  
 

Supporting Documentation: ☐ Attached ☒ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 

☐ Delegations  ☒ Consent Agenda 

☐ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 
☐ County Board Items ☐ Other 
 

 
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 

 

Board Action: 
 Approved as Requested:    
 Denied:    
 Tabled:    
 Other:    

Distribution/Filing Instructions:   

 



PROCEEDINGS OF THE ROSEAU COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

April 22, 2014 
 

The Board of Commissioners of Roseau County, Minnesota met in the Courthouse in 
the City of Roseau, Minnesota on Tuesday, April 22, 2014. 

 
CALL TO ORDER – ROLL CALL – ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM  
 
 The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m. by Board Chair Glenda Phillipe.  The 
Pledge of Allegiance was recited.  Commissioners present were Mark Foldesi, Todd Miller, 
Glenda Phillipe and Jack Swanson.  Commissioner Falk was excused. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 

Discussion on adding a “public comments” section to all County meeting Agendas 
was added to County Board Items.  A motion to approve the amended Agenda was made by 
Commissioner Swanson, seconded by Commissioner Miller and carried unanimously. 

 
COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 The Board was reminded of the Assessor interviews April 25, 2014 and the Veterans 
Services Officer interviews April 29, 2014; and, Commissioner Phillipe informed the Board 
that former MN Senator Bob Lessard will be in the area April 22nd and 23rd to hold informal 
meetings with County and City officials. 
 
APPROVAL OF BILLS 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Foldesi, seconded by Commissioner Swanson 

and carried unanimously to approve the payment of the following bills: 
 

Warrants Approved For Payment 4/10/2014 
 

 Vendor Name  Amount 
 MOTOR VEHICLE DEPUTY REGISTRAR  3,025.43 
 ROSEAU CITY  8,717.91 
 ROSEAU CO TRAILBLAZERS                      28,490.20 
 US POSTAL SERVICE                                30,000.00 
 23 Payments less than 2,000.00   4,090.25 
 Final Total:          74,323.79 

  
Warrants Approved For Payment 4/16/2014 

 
 Vendor Name  Amount 
 CENTURYLINK  2,424.75 
 HASLER INC  2,910.10 
 MN DEPT OF FINANCE -TREAS  2,146.50 
 MN ENERGY RESOURCES  4,282.34 
 6 Payment less than 2,000.00     502.67 
 Final Total:            12,266.36 
 

Warrants Approved On 4/22/2014 For Payment 4/25/2014 
 

 Vendor Name Amount 



 AMERICAN INSTITUTIONAL SUPPLY  4,240.59 
 GREENBUSH CITY           10,000.00 
 INTEGRATED SOLUTIONS CONSULTING  9,873.74 
 JOHNSON OIL CO INC  7,028.10 
 NORTHERN RESOURCES COOPERATIVE  3,889.83 
 37 Payments less than 2,000.00          13,896.53 
 Final Total:                 48,928.79 

 
DELEGATIONS/BOARD APPOINTSMENTS/PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

University of North Dakota Forensic Pathologist Dr. Mary Ann Sens met with the 
Board to discuss contracting the County Coroner services to the UND School of Medicine 
and Health Sciences.  The State of Minnesota is changing the certification requirements for 
County Coroners and the local (elected) physician(s) are not interested in pursuing this 
certification process.  In order for Counties to change from an elected position to an 
appointed position, a prescribed process must be followed.  The Board agreed to continue 
this discussion at the Committee of the Whole meeting on May 6, 2014. 
 
Public Comment 
 Mr. Jim Jenson met with the Board to provide a sample of gravel taken from the 
Wellin pit and a sample taken from Mr. Jenson’s yard which initially came from the Isane pit. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 A motion to adopt the Consent Agenda was made by Commissioner Miller, seconded 
by Commissioner Foldesi and carried unanimously.  The Board, by adoption of its Consent 
Agenda, approved the April 8, 2014 Board Proceedings; approved the 2013 HSEM 
Stonegarden Grant Agreement effective March 28, 2014 – August 31, 2015, in the amount 
of $71,073.00; accepted an anonymous donation in the amount of $2,000.00 to the Roseau 
County Sheriff’s Department; approved a Soil Verification Service Contract with Keith Block 
effective January 1, 2014 – December 31, 2014; approved the Heavy Equipment Operator 
Benefit payout in the amount of $13,680.99; and, approved the hire of Social Worker Trisha 
Braaten at a Grade 7, Step A. 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 
Information Technology 
 IT Administrator Chris Stauffer met with the Board to discuss providing technology 
support services to the City of Warroad.  Stauffer visited the City offices and determined that 
his office could support Warroad’s basic technology needs.  A motion to provide technology 
support services to the City of Warroad, for no longer than six months, at a rate of $100.00 
per hour plus $125.00 for each trip made, was made by Commissioner Phillipe, seconded 
by Commissioner Miller and carried unanimously. 
 

Commissioner Phillipe stated that the Warroad City Council will meet on Monday 
April 28, 2014 to discuss the proposed collaboration. 

 
Highway Department 
 Highway Engineer Brian Ketring met with the Board to seek approval of the County’s 
2014 bituminous overlay projects.  A motion to award SAP 068-602-038 (CSAH 2), SAP 
068-603-025 (CSAH 3) and SAP 068-673-005 (CSAH 73) to Minn-Dak Asphalt, Inc. in the 
amount of $2,812,723.48 was made by Commissioner Foldesi, seconded by Commissioner 
Miller and carried unanimously. 
 



 In addition, Ketring requested the Board approve calling for bids on the County’s 
2014 seal coat projects.  A motion to call for bids on the County’s 2014 seal coat projects, to 
be opened on Tuesday, May 20, 2014, at 2:00 p.m., in the County Board Room, was made 
by Commissioner Swanson, seconded by Commissioner Miller and carried unanimously. 
 
COUNTY BOARD ITEMS 
 
Local Government Roundtable Groundwater Advisory Policy Committee Appointment 
  The Board discussed appointing a Commissioner to the Local Government 
Roundtable Groundwater Advisory Policy Committee.  A motion to appoint Commissioner 
Todd Miller to this Committee was made by Commissioner Swanson, seconded by 
Commissioner Foldesi and carried unanimously. 
 
Opposition to EPA Regulations 
 The Board discussed adopting a resolution in opposition to proposed EPA 
regulations.  A motion was made by Commissioner Miller, seconded by Commissioner 
Swanson and carried unanimously to adopt the following resolution: 
 
2014-04-02 

 
WHEREAS, Roseau County, Minnesota has experienced long term and costly delays to 

its road construction, flood control and to private projects located in the County due to the 
EPA and Army Corps definitions of “waters of the U.S.”; 

 
WHEREAS, the United State Supreme Court has stated that an applicant spends an 

average of 788 days of time and $271,596 to obtain an individual 404 U.S. Corps permit.  
The Supreme Court chastised these agencies in the 2001 SWANCC and 2006 Rapanos 
cases for regulatory overreaching and these agencies have refused to address any/all 
opposition that they continue to receive from taxpaying landowners and local units of 
government; 

 
WHEREAS, these agencies are currently using interpretive guidelines established by the 

EPA in 2011 and these guidelines do not grant them final authority, as that authority can 
only be specified by Rule; 

 
WHEREAS, the EPA now wishes to adopt new regulations which will indeed grant them 

final authority in matters dealing with waters of the U.S. and will include regulation of man-
made ditches, public drains, tributaries, adjacent and neighboring wetlands, ecoregion, 
significant nexus, surface connection, ground water connection, discharge and possibly 
much more.  Regulation of these latter items has currently resulted in high levels of 
confusion, delays and increased permitting costs for the applicants.  It has also allowed the 
EPA and the Corps to far exceed their applicable regulatory, statutory and constitutional 
limits.  In addition, this regulation is redundant to State wetland regulations that are already 
in place and mitigate wetland impacts from pre-paid wetland bank of credits for road 
projects. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that Roseau County, Minnesota hereby 

opposes the new EPA proposed regulations that would replace the 2011 interpretive 
guidelines they are currently following concerning the Clean Waters Act definition for 
“Waters of the United States.” 

 
BE IT ALSO RESOLVED, that Roseau County, Minnesota will support EPA and Corps 

regulation of traditional navigable waters only. 
 



Commissioner Committee Reports 
 Commissioner Foldesi reported on the following committee(s): Committee of the 
Whole, 4/18/14; Social Services Board, 4/18/14, Highway Committee, 4/18/14; Quin County 
Community Health Services Board, 4/21/14. 
 
 Commissioner Miller reported on the following committee(s):  Committee of the 
Whole, 4/18/14; Social Services Board, 4/18/14; Highway Committee, 4/18/14. 
 
 Commissioner Phillipe reported on the following committee(s):  Housing Institute, 4-
8/9, 2014; Warroad City Council, 4/14/14; Warroad School Board, 4/14/14; Committee of the 
Whole, 4/18/14; Social Services Board, 4/18/14; Highway Committee, 4/18/14; Roseau 
County Committee on Aging, 4/21/14. 
 

Commissioner Swanson reported on the following committee(s):  Northwest Regional 
Emergency Communications Board, 4/9/14; Housing Institute, 4/9/14; Statewide Emergency 
Communications Board Finance Committee, 4/10/14; Housing Institute, 4/10/14; Association 
of Minnesota Counties Board of Director’s 4/11/14; EPIC (CJCC Subcommittee), 4/14/14; 
Local Government Water Roundtable, 4/16/14; Committee of the Whole, 4/18/14; Social 
Services Board, 4/18/14; Highway Committee, 4/18/14; EPIC (CJCC Subcommittee), 
4/18/14. 

 
 Commissioner Phillipe requested the Board consider adding a “public comments” 
section to meeting Agendas where the full Board is present.  Ms. Phillipe added that this 
addition would be consistent with regular County Board meeting protocol.  A motion to add a 
“public comments” section to meeting Agendas where the full Board is present was made by 
Commissioner Miller, seconded by Commissioner Swanson and carried unanimously. 
 

Upon motion carried, the Board adjourned the Regular Meeting at 11:30 a.m. The 
next Regular Meeting of the Board is scheduled for May 13, 2014 at 9:00 a.m.  
 
Attest: Date:   
 
    
Jeff Pelowski, County Coordinator Glenda Phillipe, Chair 
Roseau County, Minnesota  Board of County Commissioners 
 Roseau County, Minnesota 



Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

Agenda Item #:   Consent 3 
(for office use only)

Requested Board Date: 6/24/14 Originating Department:  Coordinator’s Office 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
AMC Broadband Sub-committee 

Presenter:  Jeff Pelowski 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 

☒< 5 minutes ☐ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes

☐ 15 minutes ☐ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 
Board Action Requested: 
Establish an AMC Broadband Sub-committee 

Background: 
 

Supporting Documentation: ☐ Attached ☐ None

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 

☐ Delegations ☒ Consent Agenda

☐ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 
☐ County Board Items ☐ Other 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 
Board Action: 

Approved as Requested:  
Denied:   
Tabled:   
Other:   

Distribution/Filing Instructions:  



Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

 
 

Agenda Item #:   Consent 4  
(for office use only) 
Requested Board Date: 6/24/14 Originating Department:  Northstar ATV Club 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
Northstar ATV Club GIA Reimbursement 

Presenter:  Mike Klein 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 

☒< 5 minutes ☐ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes 

☐ 15 minutes ☐ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 
Board Action Requested: 
Requesting approval for GIA Reimbursement. 

Background: 
      
 

Supporting Documentation: ☒ Attached ☐ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 

☐ Delegations  ☒ Consent Agenda 

☐ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 
☐ County Board Items ☐ Other 
 

 
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 

 

Board Action: 
 Approved as Requested:    
 Denied:    
 Tabled:    
 Other:    

Distribution/Filing Instructions:   

 











Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

 
 

Agenda Item #:   Consent 5  
(for office use only) 
Requested Board Date: 6/24/14 Originating Department:  Sheriff’s Office 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
Civil Process Supervisor/Office Manager 
 Advertisement to Hire 

Presenter:  Steve Gust 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 

☒< 5 minutes ☐ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes 

☐ 15 minutes ☐ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 
Board Action Requested: 
Requesting authorization to advertise for the hire of a Civil Process Supervisor/Office Manager. 

Background: 
Jan Klatt has submitted notice that she will be retiring effective August 29, 2014. 
 

Supporting Documentation: ☐ Attached ☐ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 

☐ Delegations  ☒ Consent Agenda 

☐ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 
☐ County Board Items ☐ Other 
 

 
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 

 

Board Action: 
 Approved as Requested:    
 Denied:    
 Tabled:    
 Other:    

Distribution/Filing Instructions:   

 



Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

Agenda Item #:   Consent 6 
(for office use only)

Requested Board Date: June 24, 2014 Originating Department:  Assessor’s Office 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
 Appraiser Trainee Hire(s) 

Presenter:  Al Heim 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 

☐< 5 minutes ☒ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes

☐ 15 minutes ☐ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 
Board Action Requested: 
Requesting approval to hire William R. Hulst and Erica L. Mertens to fill Appraiser Trainee positions at 
a (Grade 5 Step A) $17.30 per hour effective July 7, 2014. 

Background: 
There were twenty applications received for the Appraiser Trainee position.  The applicants were graded based on 
background and experience.  Of the original applicants ten were selected to be interviewed.  A team of four 
conducted and scored the interviews.  The applicants also completed a comprehensive exam as part of the 
interview process.  The top two applicants were offered and have accepted the position contingent upon a 
satisfactory background check and County Board approval.    

Supporting Documentation: ☐ Attached ☒ None

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 

☐ Delegations ☒ Consent Agenda

☐ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 
☐ County Board Items ☐ Other 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 
Board Action: 

Approved as Requested:  
Denied:   
Tabled:   
Other:   

Distribution/Filing Instructions:  



Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

 
 

Agenda Item #:   Consent 7  
(for office use only) 
Requested Board Date: 6/24/14 Originating Department:  Badger Jaycees 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
Temporary Liquor License 

Presenter:  Click here to enter text. 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 

☒< 5 minutes ☐ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes 

☐ 15 minutes ☐ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 
Board Action Requested: 
The Badger Jaycees are requesting approval of a temporary liquor license application in order to serve 
3.2 percent malt liquor at the Wojo Rodeo July 4–5, 2014. 

Background: 
      
  

Supporting Documentation: ☒ Attached ☐ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 

☐ Delegations  ☒ Consent Agenda 

☐ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 
☐ County Board Items ☐ Other 
 

 
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 

 

Board Action: 
 Approved as Requested:    
 Denied:    
 Tabled:    
 Other:    

Distribution/Filing Instructions:   

 



 
Board of Commissioners 

606 5th Ave. SW, Room #131 
Roseau, MN 56751 

Phone:  218-463-4248 
Fax:  218-463-3252 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION 
APPROVING TEMPORARY ON SALE 3.2 PERCENT MALT LIQUOR LICENSE 

 
 
 
2014-06-01 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED, that a temporary on-sale 3.2 percent malt liquor license for the period 
of July 4, 2014 through July 5, 2014, at Midnight be granted to the Badger Jaycees for the sale of 
3.2 percent malt liquor at a rodeo to be held at the Keith and Dana Wojciechowski residence, 
pending receipt of a Certificate of Insurance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA  ) 
     )  ss 
COUNTY OF ROSEAU      ) 
  
 
I, Jeff Pelowski, Board Clerk in and for Roseau County, Minnesota, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a 
true and correct copy of a part of the proceedings adopted by the Roseau County Board of Commissioners on 
June 24, 2014. 
 
 (SEAL)      ____________________________ 
       Jeff Pelowski 

      Roseau County Board Clerk 
 
 
 

 

District 1, Glenda Phillipe, Vice-Chair - District 2, Jack Swanson,   
District 3, Roger Falk, Chair- District 4, Todd Miller - District 5, Mark Foldesi 

 
An Equal Opportunity Employer 









Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

 
 

Agenda Item #:   Committee Reports 
(for office use only) 
Requested Board Date: 6/24/14 Originating Department:  Building Committee 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
Computer Room Humidifier/Dehumidifier 

Presenter:  Dave Anderson 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 

☒< 5 minutes ☐ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes 

☐ 15 minutes ☐ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 
Board Action Requested: 
Requesting Board approval to purchase a humidifier/dehumidifier for the Courthouse computer room at a 
cost of $6,050. 

Background: 
The Building Committee supports this purchase. 
 

Supporting Documentation: ☐ Attached ☒ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 

☐ Delegations  ☐ Consent Agenda 

☐ Department Reports ☒ Committee Reports 

☐ County Board Items ☐ Other 
 

 
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 

 

Board Action: 
 Approved as Requested:    
 Denied:    
 Tabled:    
 Other:    

Distribution/Filing Instructions:   

 



Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

 
 

Agenda Item #:   County Board Items 1 
(for office use only) 
Requested Board Date: June 24, 2014 Originating Department:  Coordinator 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
Commissioner Committee Reports 

Presenter:  Commissioner 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 
☐< 5 minutes ☐ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes 
☐ 15 minutes ☒ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 

Board Action Requested: 
Commissioners Phillipe and Swanson have submitted Committee Reports for review. 
 

Background: 
Monthly meeting review. 
 

Supporting Documentation: ☒ Attached ☐ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 

☐ Delegations  ☐ Consent Agenda 

☐ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 
☒ County Board Items ☐ Other 
 

 
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 

 

Board Action: 
 Approved as Requested:    
 Denied:    
 Tabled:    
 Other:    

Distribution/Filing Instructions:   

 



Roseau County Board 
June 2014 
Glenda A. Phillipe 
District One 
 
June 3, 2014 – Operations – Roseau 
Highway and Lenny collaborate on grounds maintenance; building committee will meet again regarding 
upkeep; use STS 
June 3, 2014 – Committee of the Whole – Roseau 
Presentation by Tobacco-Free Communities Grant staff; sample tobacco ordinance for Roseau County 
available. 
Discussion with RM of Piney and Representative Dan Fabian regarding MN Power lines; will interfere with 
Piney International Airport expansion.  
June 9, 2014 – RCCoA – Roseau 
Director leave of absence; Paul Bunyan Transit partnership. 
June 9, 2014 – Warroad City Council – Warroad 
 Shared sealcoat info. 
June 9, 2014 – County Board – Roseau 
June 9, 2014 – Fair Planning Committee 
 
June 10, 2014 – Warroad Lost River Gun Club – Warroad 
June 16, 2014 – Land of the Dancing Sky Agency on Aging – Moorhead 
June 17, 2014 – Social Services – Roseau 
June 17, 2014 – Highway Department – Roseau 
June 17, 2014 – Board of Appeal – Roseau 
June 18, 2014 – Lake Township – Warroad 
June 19, 2014 – Warroad Community Park – Warroad 
June 19, 2014 – Warroad Emergency “Flood” Meeting – Warroad 
June19, 2014 –  HSEM Subcommittee – Roseau 
June 19, 2014 – Special Board Meeting/Flood – Roseau 
June 19, 2014 – Al Heim Farewell – Roseau 
June 20, 2014 – Corps of Engineers - Warroad 
 
 
June 23, 2014 – Warroad City Council – Warroad 
June 24, 2014 – County Board – Roseau 
June 24, 2014 – Public Health - Roseau 
June 26, 2014 – Warroad Parks and Rec - Warroad 
 
 



                                        JACK SWANSON COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
JUNE 9, 2014 -  ROSEAU COUNTY COMMITTEE ON AGING;  met w/ Kent 

Ehrenstrom (MnDOT) and Greg Nygaard (Paul Bunyan Transit) on possible 

merger of Far North Transit with Paul Bunyan 

 

JUNE 10, 2014 -  ROSEAU COUNTY FAIR COMMITTEE;  Far North Transit will 

take charge of fair booth  

 

JUNE 10, 2014 -  BUILDING COMMITTEE;  H2O heaters for jail; planned 

walkthrough of county facilities for June 30;  Brian Grafstrom (Lifecare Medical 

Center)  will provide emergency backup for Lenny Johnson 

 

JUNE 11, 2014 -  LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE;  met w/ State Rep Dan Fabian – 

he asked that MRCC provide a short list of viable efforts which would benefit 

Greater Minnesota, for the 2015 session 

 

JUNE 11, 2014 -  ROSEAU CONVENTION & VISITORS BUREAU 

 

JUNE 11, 2014 -  NORTHWEST REGIONAL EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS 

BOARD;  approved request to SECB for Lake of the Woods County ARMER 

participation plan grant 

 

JUNE 12, 2014 -  ROSEAU COMMUNITY EDUCATION COMMITTEE 

 

JUNE 12, 2014 -  STATEWIDE EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS BOARD 

FINANCE COMMITTEE;  approved $ 19,500 for Lake of the Woods County, and 

$16,000 for Roseau County for ARMER participation plans;  a strategic planning 

task force, to look at future funding for emergency communications,  will 

convene this summer 

 

JUNE 16, 2014 -  ROSEAU COUNTY COMMITTEE ON AGING;  tabled a 

decision on a merger with Paul Bunyan Transit (Bemidji) to July 21 

meeting,  pending further study of other transit system mergers 

 

JUNE 17, 2014 -  SOCIAL SERVICES BOARD 

 

JUNE 17, 2014 -  HIGHWAY COMMITTEE 

 

JUNE 17, 2014 -  ROSEAU COUNTY BOARD OF APPEAL AND EQUALIZATION 

 



JUNE 18, 2014 -  TEAM ‘EPIC’;  ongoing effort to secure grant funding for 

youth alcohol and drug prevention program 

 

JUNE 18, 2014 -  LUNCH W/ JIM ATKINSON, MINNESOTA POWER 

 

JUNE 20, 2014 -  ASSOCIATION OF MINNESOTA COUNTIES EXECUTIVE 

COMMITTEE  (ST PAUL) 

 

JUNE 20, 2014 -   ASSOCIATION OF MINNESOTA COUNTIES BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS  (ST PAUL) 

 

JUNE 23, 2014 -   ROSEAU COUNTY AFFORDABLE HOUSING FUND 

COMMITTEE    
 


	6-24-14.pdf
	REGULAR COUNTY BOARD MEETING AGENDA




